ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 6, 2008
3:03 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Wes Kel |l er
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representative Berta Gardner

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 332
"An Act relating to elenentary and pre-el enentary schools.”

- MOVED HB 332 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 384

"An Act requiring the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent to establish an electronic education records system
and standards and requiring school districts to establish and
maintain electronic education records systens; requiring
| earning plans for students; establishing the Merit Schol arship
Task Force; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 332

SHORT TI TLE: PRE- ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PROGRANMS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) EDGVON

01/ 18/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 08 (H) HES, FIN
03/ 06/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

BILL: HB 384

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 6, 2008



SHORT TI TLE: ELECTRONI C EDUCATI ON RECORDS/ STUDENT PLAN
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

02/ 19/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H) HES, FIN
03/ 06/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGVON,

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 332 as the sponsor.

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
332.

DI CK LUTHER, Legi sl ative Liaison

Conmi ssioner's Ofice

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
384.

JAKE HAMBURG, Student Body President

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 384.

DANNY RAY SW SHER, Student Organi zing Director

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 384.

JOSEPH BLANCHARD, Student Governnent Rel ations Director

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 384.

Bl LL BJORK, President

NEA- Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 384.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 6, 2008



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON call ed the House Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:03:31 PM
Representatives Seaton, Cissna, Keller, and WIson were present
at the call to order. Representative Roses arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

HB 332- PRE- ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PROGRAMS

3:04:36 PM

CHAIR WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 332, "An Act relating to elenentary and pre-
el ementary school s. ™

3:05: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGVON, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
introduced HB 332 as the sponsor. Representative Edgnon
informed the commttee that the bill will allow Head Start and

preschool facilities to quality for federal funding under the
Schools and Libraries Universal Services Support Mechanism (E-
Rat e) program He explained that the E-Rate federal program
provides funding under the Universal Service Adnmnistrative
Conmpany (USAC) to pronote the use of teleconmmunication anong
schools and libraries. In 2004, the USAC issued a decision to
drop Al aska preschools and Head Start facilities from this
funding due to Alaska's statutory definition of preschool and
Head Start facilities. The state is in opposition to the
f eder al deci si on; however, HB 332 attenpts to provide
clarification in ternms of the definition of preschool and Head
Start facilities and to satisfy the federal requirenment to
participate in the E-Rate program Representative Edgnon stated

that the bill has a zero fiscal note as this is a redistribution
of federal funds. He then pointed out, with the passage of the
bill, Head Start facilities will be required to apply for a new

qualification from the Departnment of Education and Early
Devel oprment (EED).

3:08:49 PM

CHAIR WLSON recalled that the E-Rate program gives the schools
an opportunity to connect to the Internet for a reduced cost.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 6, 2008



3:09:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON affirmed that, when schools and libraries
provi de tel ephones, conputers, and software, federal funding
allows for a discount rate to be applied for the use of Internet
services. The discount rate is based on the wurban rural
distinction and also on the |level of poverty of the facilities.

3:09: 53 PM

CHAI R WLSON asked whet her each state gets a certain anmount, and
whet her some schools will get less if Head Start facilities are
added to the program

3:10: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON said no. Al |l ow ng preschool and Head
Start to participate will increase the total anount of federal
funding that Al aska receives under this program

3:10: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES related testinony from the Juneau library
director that the anmount of paperwork required for the E-Rate
program cost nore noney than the discounts saved. He assuned
that when a Head Start facility is connected with an existing
school program there would be no cost; however, adding a new
school would have start-up costs. He then asked whether, when
certification is required from the EED, it then becones
responsi ble for filing E-Rate docunentati on.

3:12:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON deferred part of the question to the EED.
He did say that his research shows that Head Start facilities
feel this program saves noney.

3:12: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his support of Head Start, but
said that he wanted to verify the position of the program He

al so stated his interest in the position of the EED.

3:13:32 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON expressed his understanding that the
funding flows directly from the federal governnent to the
entity, w thout going through the EED.

3:13: 52 PM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED), inforned
the commttee that the E-Rate program has a direct relationship
with school districts and libraries, and does not flow through
t he EED. M. Jeans pointed out that the program is voluntary,
and an entity can decide whether there is a fiscal benefit. The
passage of HB 332 will add state qualified preschools and Head
Start facilities to the definition of public schools.

3:15:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his understanding that funding
for Head Start flows through the EED and establishes its
qualification.

3:15: 37 PM

MR. JEANS explained that the definition of "schools" in Al aska's
statute determines the qualification; therefore, referring to
Head Start facilities in the definition will allow Head Start to
participate in the E-Rate program

3:16: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES surmised that the EED is satisfied with the
| anguage in the bill.

3:16: 14 PM

MR. JEANS expressed his confort with the |anguage; however, he
said that he did not know whether the |anguage will satisfy the
federal governnent. The EED has nmade multiple unsuccessful
efforts to contact the USAC for clarification on this issue.

3:17: 01 PM

CHAIR W LSON asked whether this bill will require the state to
fund preschools and Head Start facilities.

3:17:33 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 6, 2008



MR. JEANS pointed out that the bill elimnates pre-elenmentary
students from the average daily nenbership under AS 14.17, the
statute that provides for school foundation funding. He noted
that there are two conponents to HB 332; that preschools and
Head Start facilities are recognized by the state, and that they
have state and federal funding associated with them

3:18: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked whether HB 332 w | decrease the
fundi ng sources available to Head Start.

3:18: 29 PM
REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON said no. In fact, there wll be an
i ncrease. The funding cones from the national governnment, and

is estimated to be near $20 mlli on.
3:19: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA surm sed that, although the E-Rate program
is expensive to admi nister, that cost can be factored in.

3:19:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON re-stated that the USAC has not responded
to the Departnent of Law, perhaps due to the possibility that
additional funding for Alaska nmy undercut other states'
al | ot ment s.

3:20: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to report HB 332 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. Hearing no objection, HB 332 was reported out of the
House Heal th, Education and Social Services Standing Comm ttee.

HB 384- ELECTRONI C EDUCATI ON RECORDS/ STUDENT PLAN

3:21: 26 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 384, "An Act requiring the Department of
Education and Early Developnment to establish an electronic
education records system and standards and requiring school
districts to establish and nmaintain el ectronic education records
systenms; requiring learning plans for students; establishing the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 6, 2008



Merit Scholarship Task Force; and providing for an effective
date."

3:22: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER infornmed the committee that HB 384 has
three requirenents: that the EED sets standards for electronic
education records [(EDRs)]; that the education records include
learning plans that are inplenmented and maintained by school
districts; and the establishment of a task force to nake

recomendations on a nerit based scholarship program He
explained that the EED will set software and technical standards
for the electronic education records and define the process for
maki ng changes to records by parents or students. I n addition
the bill requires that education records are the property of the
student and parents as defined by the Federal Education Records
Protection Act (FERPA). Representative Keller continued to

explain that the electronic records nust be a secure system and
i nclude the student |earning plan. The custom zed | earning plan

will allow for prescriptive and diagnostic teaching, set out
| evel s of achievenent, and contain achievenent records simlar
to a portfolio of student work. He stressed that the bill is

intentionally not specific and depends on the school district
and the EED to define the particulars of what is required froma
learning plan, and to provide the acconpanying professional

devel opnent training. Lastly, the bill establishes a task force
that wll "set the bar" for student achievenent and create
options for a nerit based program Representative Keller then
descri bed schol arship prograns in other states. He pointed out
that many school districts are creating electronic records and
the bill will establish statewi de standards and a structure. |In

fact, the National Conference of State Legislatures has passed
policy that encourages advances in technology to custom ze and
monitor each child' s educational experience. He referred to
further research on this topic that was provided in the
committee packet.

3:30: 48 PM

CHAI R WLSON asked whether the educational records are required
to be uniform throughout the state. She further asked whet her
school districts, wth this system already in place, would be
required to conform

3:31: 22 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stressed that this bill is needed
i mediately so that new systens wll be developed in a
conpati bl e and consi stent way.

3:32:17 PM
CHAIR W LSON observed that No Child Left Behind (NCLB) allows

for annual testing. She asked for a further description of the
fiscal note.

3:33:46 PM

DI CK  LUTHER, Legi slative Liaison, Comm ssioner's Ofice,
Department of Education and Early Developnent, inforned the
committee that there are two conponents to the fiscal note; the
task force and the electronic recordkeeping. The task force

portion is estimted to be $15, 000. The recordkeeping portion
is based on the costs for conmpiling the existing records system
and is estimated to be $1.5 nmillion.

3:35:23 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked how nmany schools presently have the sane
dat abase.

3:35:46 PM

MR. LUTHER answered that the EED presently requires each
district to have a systemthat is conpatible with the state. The
bill will require additions to the present recordkeepi ng system

3:36:14 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether there will be federal grant noney to
fund the additional recordkeeping costs to schools.

3:36:43 PM

MR. LUTHER expressed his understanding that the federal grant
nmoney is gone; in fact, it is likely that the new costs w|l

cone from the general fund (GF). He opined that schoo
districts will expect state funding to pay for the additiona
recor dkeepi ng.

3:37:19 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked whether there 1is already good
correspondence between schools and the state, and whether
school s are using conpati bl e software.

3:37:42 PM

MR. LUTHER opined that sone districts wll have to expand
capacity to neet the requirenments of electronic records,
particularly with the increase of information needed on students
under the nerit schol arshi p program

3:38:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER rem nded that commttee that the bill does
not specify, except that the nmerit scholarship program will use
the electronic educational record system He asked whether a
portion of the $3.5 mllion grant was used to assign students
identification nunbers and create the beginning of a data base,
at the direction of the |egislature.

3:39: 39 PM

MR. LUTHER expressed his belief that the existing system was
created to conply with the requirenments of NCLB |egislation.
Adding additional elenents, such as the individual education
plan, wll require increasing the capacity of the conputer
program

3:40: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for an estimate of the cost, per
child, to develop an individual education plan (IEP) for special
educati on students.

3:41: 06 PM

MR. LUTHER advised that he would get that information from the
speci al education departnent.

3:41:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his concern that the fiscal note
does not cover the time needed for teachers and administrators
to prepare individual educational plans. Furthernore, the
increase to the base student allocation could be used up by new
burdens to school districts.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- March 6, 2008



3:42: 57 PM

MR. LUTHER confirnmed that the fiscal note does not include the
cost that school districts would bear to devel op the educati onal
plans. He said that he would provide an estimate of the cost to
wite one | EP

3:43: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER enphasi zed that HB 384 does not establish
an individual educational |earning plan conparable to those that
nmeet special education requirenents. Moreover, there is room
for school districts to develop their own nodel

3:44: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES called the commttee's attention to page 3,
line 2, of the bill and read, "A school district shall develop a
student learning plan for each student enrolled in a school.
The plan nust include: di agnostic assignnments and goals; a

description of optional supplenmental or tutorial recomendation
for inplenmentation by the parent or guardian of the student for
advancenent toward high school graduation.” He then described
his experience with student identification nunbers that began
wi th special education students and now includes all students.
In Anchorage, elenmentary school teachers are using conputers to
downl oad state assessnment tests, track each student's progress,
and craft |esson plans. For a class of 27 to 32 students, this
| evel of i ndi vi dual i zati on is i npossi bl e. Furt her nore,
i npl enentation of the program at the elenentary |evel only, has
t aken seven years and cost $7 mllion dollars.

3:48: 16 PM

CHAIR WLSON added that sonme schools have student portfolios
that allow kids to know what work has yet to be |earned.
3:49: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated that the intent of the bill is to
establish a statewide structure so if students transfer between
the 53 school districts, their educational history and plan wll
transfer instantly. He acknow edged that the fiscal note does
not include all costs; however, by working together, the schoo
districts, the EED, and the unions can keep costs down.

3:51:13 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further explained that the |anguage in the

bill says "individual instruction plan.” There are prograns
avail able that allow for individual instruction on a conputer at
the high school |[evel. These prograns require a conputer for
each student. In addition, the term "individual educational
pl an" has neaning in education |aw. Representati ve Roses then
asked how the scholarship programin the bill differs from the

exi sting University of Alaska (UA) Schol ars program
3:53: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated that the UA Scholars program is
[imted. He opined that the real problem is that the state
educational nodel is out of date. One-third of Al aska's schools
have less than 100 kids and the placenment of highly qualified
teachers requires a different nodel today. Li kewi se, putting
in statute the requirenent of an individual educational plan,
wi thout details, wll I|ead teachers and schools districts to
develop a new nodel, perhaps wusing correspondence school
gui del i nes. Representati ve Kel | er chal | enged school s to
custom ze | earning for Kkids.

3:56:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his concern that individual
education plans are often interpreted by parents in different
ways and can lead to lawsuits and court-ordered nediation. For
exanpl e, special education IEPs often end up in court where the
court decides the neaning of a particular IEP, no matter what
has been defined by the school district. Represent ati ve Roses'
final point was that the UA Scholars program that grants
scholarships to those who are in the top ten percent of their
hi gh school class, is a four year, full tuition scholarship to
any UA canpus. He opined that this is a very flexible and
successful programthat may be expanded.

3:58: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noted that on page 2, line 2, the bill
allows access to the educational plan by students and their
parents or |egal guardians. He said that he felt this, and
other provisions in the bill, wll allow a process of
corrections to the plan that will reduce parental concerns and

confirm goals for +the student. Regarding the nerit based
schol arship, Representative Keller re-stated that the task force
will be investigating options for Al askan students.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 6, 2008



4:00: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed her belief that an electronic
report is a good idea, but the tine and cost are high. Simlar
progranms in other states have had m xed success. She suggested
that a student learning plan could also include a focus on the
student's future career potential, and could guide a student to
their strengths as they are revealed during the years of
schooling. Representative Ci ssna pointed out that the dates for
the creation of the task force are confusing, although she
supported the idea of the task force and felt that its
responsibilities could be expanded to work on other educationa
guesti ons.

4:05:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER responded that the tinme table for the task
force can be adjusted. He spoke of his neeting with national
education officials and the beginning of the idea that each
student should have an independent education plan. Even on a
national |evel, the process of setting standards has just begun.
Al aska can keep nore local control by taking these steps before
a federal mandate is issued. He further explained that future
software may be shareware; thus, there are nmany possibilities.

4:08:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that there is individual tracking
of students, and the growh nodel of student achievenent, that
follows a student throughout the state. He asked whether the
only piece mssing from the current tracking system is the
i ndi vi dual education pl an.

4:09: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated that he is not famliar with the
exi sting program his goal is to address the educational outcone
of students. He concluded that the EED plan of assigning
identification nunbers for the purpose of educational outcones
needs to include diagnosis, prescription, and the use of
t echnol ogy.

4:11: 07 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rem nded the commttee that the Al aska

State Board of Education and Early Devel opnent adopts standards
and the present tracking system will reveal if kids neet those

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 6, 2008



st andar ds. He cautioned about the possibility of the conmttee
maki ng changes to education standards. Representative Seaton
expressed his satisfaction that it is now possible to follow
each student throughout the state, so that relevant parties know
whether a student is neeting their standards for grow h. He
asked whether parents of non special educational students wll
expect individual education plans equal to the scope of those
witten for special education students.

4:13:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER answered that this is not a problem now
| EPs are very specific, and the intent of the bill is that the
district wll keep records for every student, but not

necessarily an EP. The current technology is available to make
i nprovenents in education overall.

4:16: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stressed that there is a problem wth
witing a |oose definition that nust be settled in court. He
strongly recomended that the bill wuld be inproved by a

specific definition that distinguishes the educational |earning
plan from a special education |IEP

4:17:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked M. Luther for his position on the
use of the language in this bill.

4:18: 35 PM

MR. LUTHER opined that the bill requires that an individual
learning plan will be devel oped for each and every student. He
further stated that, once a plan is developed, it nust be

foll owed, or there can be repercussions.
4:19:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether M. Luther saw any other
problenms with the termnology in the bill.

4:19: 33 PM

MR. LUTHER stated that the time factor to develop a plan for
each student, including neeting with parents to reach agreenent,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- March 6, 2008



is a tinme consum ng process. He assuned each plan would al so
need to be updated on a continual basis.

4:20:31 PM
CHAI R W LSON suggested the need for year around school
4:20: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER re-stated his choice to keep the |anguage
| oose so that the EED can answer questions through regulation
and keep the issue out of court.

4:21:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that the courts | ook at the statute
that is witten by the legislature, not at the EED regul ations.
Regul ations that are not as broad as the statute wll be
chal | enged.

4:22:59 PM

CHAIR WLSON suggested that there should be further testinony
fromthe EED on this topic.

4:23:19 PM

MR, LUTHER offered that special education specialists and
Director Les Morse may provide rel evant testinony.

4:23:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noted that officials fromthe EED have had
copies of the bill for two weeks.

4:24:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the task force and stated that
research shows that a nerit Dbased scholarship program is
targeted at upper and mddle income famlies; furthernore, there
is already a nerit based scholarship program in place. He
guestioned the focus on another nerit based program

4:26: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER explained that HB 384 is relevant to
education outcones and the need to raise the bar for students.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 6, 2008



He listed statistics of educational indicators in Al aska and
stated the need for incentives to rai se student achi evenent.

4:28:33 PM

CHAIR WLSON stated that Al aska spends nore on education because
of the high cost of education in rural areas. She stated her
support of the nerit based schol arshi p program

4:29:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES enphasized that the state currently has
that programin place through UA Scholars. The schol arships are
available to those in the top ten percent of their high school
senior class and are for tuition. He pointed out that areas of
| ow economi c status still have ten percent of students that wll
qual ify. He stated that he also felt that there would be
confusion wth the National Merit Scholarship Program and
suggested further consideration of the title. Representati ve
Roses gave an exanple to illustrate that elimnation of the UA
program in favor of the program in HB 384 will stop many kids
fromqualifying for the schol arship.

4:32: 06 PM

CHAIR WLSON observed that Wangell graduates about 30 to 40
kids and the students are aware of their academ c placenent in
t he cl ass.

4:33:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES warned against the creation of a program
that will replace the existing UA scholarship program He added
that his experience is that many available scholarships go
unused and there is a need to develop a clearinghouse for
schol ar shi ps.

4:35:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER surmnmised that many high school students
feel that graduating from high school is a sufficiently high
goal . He expressed his hope that today's technology will Kkeep
ki ds engaged nore in | earning.

4:37:20 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES spoke of his desire to explore a variable

certificate of graduation nodel. This would allow schools to
issue different type of diplomas that represent varying |levels
of scholastic achievenent. He observed, however, that the

commttee generally does not have tinme to study issues on the
substance of educati on.

4:39:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER encouraged the conmittee to send HB 384 to
t he House Finance Comrittee so these i ssues can be addressed.

4:39:58 PM

CHAIR WLSON remnded the committee that the House Finance
Comm ttee does not make policy, and this is the commttee where
policy decisions should be nade.

4:40: 19 PM

JAKE HAMBURG  Student Body President, University of Al aska
Fai rbanks (UAF), inforned the conmttee that nmany el enmentary and
m ddl e school students and their parents give up on the idea of
coll ege due to the excessive costs. As living expenses and the
cost of college increases many students nust work and assune
loans; in fact, nmany students work full tine, which is
detrinental to their academ c achievenents. M. Hanburg urged
the coomttee to support a well researched and broadly supported
nmerit aid scholarship program the Alaska Achievers Incentive
Program

4:43: 03 PM

DANNY RAY SW SHER, Student Organizing Director, University of
Al aska Fairbanks (UAF), expressed his pleasure that the scope of
the bill includes a systematic, rather than programmtic,
approach. However, his concern is that the task force will only
be investigating the options for nerit based schol arships and
will not consider nerit aid. Hi s research indicates that other
states have been successful in the institution of nerit aid
schol arships that consider the nerits, and the needs, of the
nost worthy students.

4:45: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked how M. Sw sher was paying for his
educati on.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- March 6, 2008



4:45:13 PM

MR. SW SHER stated that he is currently working and is using the
G bill; however, he has decided to quit school after obtaining
hi s associ ate degree.

4:46: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked what percentage of his college
expenses is being paid for by the G bill.

4:46:14 PM

MR. SWSHER explained that the @ bill pays a set anount; his
funding sources are not keeping pace with the rising cost of
education at UAF.

4:47:06 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked whether M. Swi sher has a famly.
4:47:12 PM

MR. SW SHER sai d yes.

4:47:16 PM

JOSEPH  BLANCHARD, St udent Gover nnent Rel ati ons Di rector,
University of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF), opined that there is nore
of a benefit for students entering and continuing in college
when schol arships are a partnership of nerit and needs based
conmponents. He stated that needs based scholarships are
financially burdensone for the state and merit based
schol arshi ps help those who have other resources. He noted that
student governnent at UAF supports the ideas of HB 384, if not
all of the details.

4:49:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether M. Blanchard has an opinion
on the other conponents of the bill, that are not related to the
schol arship task force.

4:50:21 PM

MR. BLANCHARD declined to give a further opinion of the bill.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 6, 2008



4:50:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES renminded the testifiers that |egislators
must | ook at all aspects of the bill.

4:51:24 PM

BILL BJORK, President, NEA-Alaska, infornmed the commttee that
NEA- Al aska represents 13,000 teachers and education support

professionals who work in public schools in Al aska. Hi s
organi zation supports many of the goals of HB 384, and the
statenent that, "all students are special.” However, he pointed

out that the fiscal note reflects the fiscal inpact of this bill
to the EED, but does not address the cost to the kindergarten
t hrough grade 12 public schools that would have to inplenent
this plan. Firstly, the ability to acconplish the goal of a
conprehensi ve data managenent system that allows portfolios to
be shared, is far beyond the capabilities of existing public
school technol ogy. Secondly, the first deadline in the bill
provides for plans to be inplenented, for grades Kkindergarten
t hrough grade four, in 2009. M. Bjork estimated that this
woul d involve witing plans for 49,000 students and would take
about 35 full tine enployees an entire school year to conplete.
He agreed with the need to assess each student and instantly
transfer data, but cautioned that this capability can not be
reached overnight. M. Bjork rem nded the commttee that in the
1970s, when the Individuals with D sabilities Education Act
became law and required the creation of IEPs, there was a
prom se that the federal government would pay 40 percent of the
cost. In reality, federal support has never exceeded 17
per cent . He urged the conmittee not to burden public schools
wi th another unfunded mandate that is inpossible to neet and
that will expose schools to litigation.

4:57.45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked whether M. Bjork anticipates that a
portion of the increase in noney to schools wll be spent on a
systemthat will lead to inprovenents in the transfer of student
records.

4:58: 45 PM

MR. BJORK said no. He explained that the passage of HB 273 w ||
al l ocate noney back to regular education students from speci al
education budgets. In Alaska, the inpact of intensive needs

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 6, 2008



students is centered in the netropolitan area schools because
those areas of the state have support services available for

speci al needs kids. After those costs are balanced out, the
additional $100 per student nostly will be taken by inflation
there will not be nuch left to inplenment a conprehensive data

managenent system
5:00:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noted that NCLB mandates the institution of
policies and procedures to deal with deficiencies in prograns.
He pointed out that there has been recent funding for
remedi ation, and early intervention for reading prograns, and
readi ng scores have been inproving over the last three to five
years. Representative Roses then renarked:

Are we having 100 percent success? No. Are we having
a better shot at it then we did a few years ago? Yes.
Can we do nore? Absolutely. But does [HB 384] do it?
| don't think so.

5:02: 04 PM

MR. BJORK pointed out that nore students are taking advanced
pl acenent and baccal aureate classes than ever before, and
schools are working diligently. He clarified that the
acconpli shnment of the |audable goal of HB 384 will take a true
recognition of the cost of personnel. M. Bjork enphasized that
the focus should be on what is best for Al askan students,
whether they are striving to attend college or not. He
suggested that a scholarship program should be flexible and
should also include funds for students to attend trade schools
to train for the highly technical jobs that are available in
Al aska.

CHAIR WLSON said that public testinony on HB 384 would remain
open.

5:04:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES reconmended inviting two expert w tnesses
from the Anchorage School District to testify at the next
heari ng on HB 384.

5:05: 03 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested additional testinmony from the
EED on the bill.

[ Al t hough not formally stated, HB 384 was hel d over.]

5: 05: 35 PM
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Soci al Services Standing Commttee*
neeti ng was adjourned at 5:05 p. m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 6, 2008



